

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA	:	HON. STANLEY R. CHESLER
	:	
	:	Criminal No. 14-0157
v.	:	
	:	18 U.S.C. § 2251(a)
PEDRO RIOS	:	18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(2)(a)
	:	18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(5)(B)

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,
sitting at Newark, charges:

COUNT ONE

(Production of Child Pornography)

1. On or about March 4, 2008, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce a minor to engage in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct, which visual depiction was produced using materials that were mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a).

COUNT TWO

(Production of Child Pornography)

2. On or about August 13, 2008, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce a minor to engage in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct, which visual depiction was produced using materials that were mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a).

COUNT THREE

(Production of Child Pornography)

3. On or about February 15, 2010, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce a minor to engage in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct, which visual depiction was produced using materials that were mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a).

COUNT FOUR

(Production of Child Pornography)

4. On or about June 4, 2011, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce a minor to engage in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct, which visual depiction was produced using materials that were mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a).

COUNT FIVE

(Production of Child Pornography)

1. On or about November 13, 2011, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce a minor to engage in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct, which visual depiction was produced using materials that were mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a).

COUNT SIX

(Distribution of Child Pornography)

1. On or about April 27, 2012, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly distribute and attempt to distribute child pornography, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(8), which had been mailed, and using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252A(a) (2) (A) .

COUNT SEVEN

(Possession of Child Pornography)

1. On or about February 5, 2013, in Essex County, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

did knowingly possess material that contained at least three images of child pornography, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(8), which images had been mailed, shipped, and transported using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce and in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer, and which were produced using materials that were shipped and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, by any means, including by computer.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252A(a) (5) (B).

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

1. The allegations contained in pages One through Seven of this Superseding Indictment are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(a).

2. Upon conviction for violating Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a), 2252A(a)(2)(A), and 2252A(a)(5)(B), defendant,

PEDRO RIOS,

shall forfeit to the United States any and all matter that contains visual depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct in violation of the charged offenses; any property constituting or derived from any proceeds the defendant obtained directly or indirectly as a result of the said violations; and any and all property used or intended to be used in any manner or part to commit and to promote the commission of the aforementioned violations or any property traceable to such property, including but not limited to the following property seized from the defendant's residence on or about February 5, 2013:


- a. Maxtor One Touch (S/N: TB02HL4C) 300 GB external HDD enclosure, labeled "maxtorexhd2" and "12-115 s.w.1" with power cord and data cable;

- b. Maxtor One Touch (S/N: TB03WF8C) 320 GB external HDD enclosure labeled "maxtorexhd3" and "12-115 s.w.3" with power cord and data cable;
- c. Maxtor Model 6Y1600P0041201 (S/N: Y41Q1M8E) 160 GB HDD;
- d. IBM Model DTLA-307075 HDD (S/N: YSFH5469) 76.8 GB HDD;
- e. Maxtor One Touch (S/N: L60Q5ZAG) 300 GB HDD enclosure with power supply;
- f. Western Digital Model WDBAAF0015HBK-00 1.5 TB External HDD enclosure with power supply (S/N: WCAVY3256432);
- g. Seagate FreeAgent Desk 1500 (S/N: 2GEYHL47) 1500 GB External HDD enclosure with power cord;
- h. Western Digital Model WD500H1U-00 500 GB External HDD (S/N: WCA8U5193475);
- i. Seagate FreeAgent Desk 1500G External HDD enclosure with power supply (S/N: 2GETAT1J) 1500 GB;
- j. Maxtor Model 7L250S0 (S/N: L5105HJG) 250 GB HDD;
- k. Maxtor Model 7L250S0 (S/N: L51045LG) 250 GB HDD;
- l. Dell XPS Tower Computer, Service Tag Number: FRT2K91;
- m. Gateway Computer Tower Model 510XL SN: 1099955580;

- n. Western Digital Mybook External Hard Drive 2 TB,
S/N: WCAVY3461442 labeled powerspec back-up;
- o. Western Digital Model WDBAAH0011HCH-00 (S/N:
WCAV5D880123) 1 TB External HDD enclosure with
power supply
- p. XL-2 Camera with case;
- q. Canon EOS Digital Camera in Black Vanguard Case;
- r. Lorez DVR system; and
- s. Sony camera.

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON



PAUL J. FISHMAN
United States Attorney